
City of Keene
New Hampshire

KEENE CITY COUNCIL
Council Chambers, Keene City Hall 

December 20, 2018
7:00 PM

 
Roll Call
Pledge of Allegiance

MINUTES FROM PRECEDING MEETING

• December 6, 2018

A. HEARINGS / PRESENTATIONS / PROCLAMATIONS

B. ELECTIONS / NOMINATIONS / APPOINTMENTS / CONFIRMATIONS

1. Nominations
Bicycle Pedestrian Path Advisory Committee
Conservation Commission
Juvenile Conference Committee
Martin Luther King, Jr./Jonathan Daniels Committee
Partner City Committee
Planning Board
Zoning Board of Adjustment

2. Confirmations
Airport Development and Marketing Committee
Assessors Board
Bicycle/Pedestrian Path Advisory Committee
Energy and Climate Committee
Conservation Commission
Heritage Commission
Historic District Commission
Keene Housing Authority
College City Commission
Martin Luther King, Jr./Jonathan Daniels Committee
Partner City Committee
Trustees of Trust Funds
 

C. COMMUNICATIONS

1. Karen Parsells - Resignation - Partner City Committee

2. Edward Guyot - Resignation - Bicycle Pedestrian Path Advisory Committee

3. Pamela Russell Slack - Public Restrooms at Former Transportation Center

4. Pamela Russell Slack - Installation of a Payment Dropbox Outside City Hall



5. Hundred Nights Shelter - Request for Renewal of Lodging House License

6. Monadnock Travel Council - Use of City Property - 2019 Ice and Snow Festival

7. Keene Community Kitchen - In Support of Resolution R-2018-36

8. Keene State College - In Support of Resolution R-2018-36

9. Antioch University New England - In Support of Resolution R-2018-36

D. REPORTS - COUNCIL COMMITTEES

1. Request for Easement Encroachment – Monadnock Food Co-op

E. REPORTS - CITY OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENTS

1. City Manager Comments

2. 2018 Homeland Security Grant Program Award- HazMat Allocation - Fire Department

F. REPORTS - BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

G. REPORTS - MORE TIME

H. ORDINANCES FOR FIRST READING

1. Relating to Loading Zones and Parking
Ordinance O-2018-22

I. ORDINANCES FOR SECOND READING

J. RESOLUTIONS

1. Relating to Sustainable Energy Goals
Resolution R-2018-36

Non Public Session
Adjournment



 12/06/2018 
 

156 
 

A regular meeting of the Keene City Council was held Thursday, December 6, 2018. The 
Honorable Mayor Kendall W. Lane called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Roll called: Carl B. 
Jacobs, Janis O. Manwaring, Thomas F. Powers, Terry M. Clark, Randy L. Filiault, Bartolmiej K. 
Sapeta, Margaret M. Rice, Robert B. Sutherland, George S. Hansel, Gary P. Lamoureux, Bettina A. 
Chadbourne, Stephen L. Hooper, Philip M. Jones, and David C. Richards were present. Mitchell H. 
Greenwald was absent. Councilor Jacobs led the Pledge of Allegiance. A motion by Councilor 
Richards to accept the minutes from the November 15, 2018 regular meeting was duly seconded.   
The motion passed with a unanimous vote in favor. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – MAYOR 
 
The Mayor announced that the Standing Committee meetings of December 26 and 27, 2018 have 
been canceled.  The Mayor went on to announce the January 3rd City Council meeting will be 
starting at 6:00 PM in order to accommodate a workshop on right-to-know that will follow the 
regular agenda. 
 
PRESENTATION OF RETIREMENT RESOLUTION – JOANNA BALCOM 
 
The Mayor presented a Resolution to Joanna Balcom in honor of her recent retirement.  The 
Resolution noted her many accomplishments during her tenure with the City and expressed 
gratitude for her years of service. 
 
APPOINTMENTS – AD HOC COMMITTEES 
 
The following appointments were received from the Mayor:  Melinda Treadwell appointed to the 
Ad Hoc Comprehensive Economic Development Committee and to the Ad Hoc Winchester Street 
Reconstruction Project Steering Committee: Sandra Clark to replace April Buzby.  A motion by 
Councilor Richards to accept the Mayor’s appointments was duly seconded.  The motion passed 
with a unanimous vote in favor. 
 
NOMINATIONS 
 
The following nominations were received from the Mayor:  Elizabeth Bendel to serve as a regular 
member of Airport Development and Marketing Committee with a term to expire December 31, 
2021; Rita Johnson to serve as a regular member of the Assessors Board with a term to expire 
December 31, 2021;  Dillon Benik to serve as a regular member of the Bicycle/Pedestrian Path 
Advisory Committee with a term to expire December 31, 2021;  Kenneth Dooley and Jessica Baum 
to serve as regular members of the Energy and Climate Committee with a term to expire December 
31, 2021;  Larry Dachowski to serve as an alternate member of the Energy and Climate Committee 
with a term to expire December 31, 2021; Bettina Chadbourne and Dick Berry to serve as regular 
members of the College City Commission with a term to expire December 31, 2021; Alexander 
VonPlinsky to serve as a regular member of the Conservation Commission with a term to expire 
December 31, 2021;  Charlotte Schuerman and  Erin Benik to serve as regular members of the 
Heritage Commission with a term to expire December 31, 2021; Hans Porschitz to serve as a 
regular member of the Historic District Commission with a term to expire December 31, 2021;  
David and Paul Cooper to serve as alternate members of the Historic District Commission with a 



 12/06/2018 
 

157 
 

term to expire December 31, 2021;  Pamela Russell Slack to serve as a regular member of  Keene 
Housing Authority with a term to expire December 31, 2023; William Hay and Jan Manwaring to 
serve as regular members of the Martin Luther King Jr./Jonathan Daniels Committee with a term to 
expire December 31, 2021;  Dawn Thomas Smith and Kathy Frink to serve as regular members of 
the Partner City Committee with a term to expire December 31, 2021;  and Kathy Snow to serve as 
a regular member of the Trustees of Trust Funds, with a term to expire December 31, 2021. The 
nominations were tabled until the next regular meeting. 
 
MSFI REPORT – PROPOSED SUSTAINABLE ENERGY RESOLUTION – ENERGY AND 
CLIMATE COMMITTEE 
 
Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee report read recommending that full 
Council direct staff to introduce a resolution regarding sustainable energy, as recommended by the 
Energy and Climate Committee. A motion by Councilor Manwaring to carry out the intent of the 
report was duly seconded.  The motion passed with 13 in favor and Councilor Sutherland opposed. 
 
PLD REPORT – ALBERT GRAUER – LODGING HOUSE LICENSE RENEWAL – 85 
WINCHESTER STREET  
 
Planning, Licenses and Development Committee report read recommending a lodging license be 
issued to Mr. Albert Grauer for property located at 85 Winchester Street for a period of one year 
from the date of issuance. Said license is conditional upon the following: 
 
1. No more than 8 persons may reside on the premises. 
2. No less than 4 vehicular parking spaces must be provided on the premises. 
3. Compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes and rules and regulations. 
4. The continuation of license is subject to and conditioned upon the successful passage of two 
inspections to be conducted by the City. 
5. Owner shall notify City staff of any change in building operator; failure to do so may be grounds 
for suspension or revocation of this license. 
 
This license expires on the 6th day of December, 2019 and may be revoked by the City Council in 
accordance with Sec. 46-590 “Suspension or Revocation.”  A motion by Councilor Jones to carry 
out the intent of the report was duly seconded. The motion passed with a unanimous vote in favor. 
 
PLD REPORT – KEENESNORIDERS SNOWMOBILE CLUB – USE OF CITY PROPERTY – 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  
 
Planning, Licenses and Development Committee report read recommending the City Council grant 
permission to KeeneSnoRiders for use of the following City property for a snowmobile trail: 
 
• The right-of-way along the north side of Krif Road from Krif Court to Winchester Street; 
• City property identified by tax map numbers 909-05-012, 911-26-015 and 909-03-210; 
• The crossing of Winchester Street at Krif Road ;and, Production Avenue approximately 200+/- 
feet south of NH Route 9, and 



 12/06/2018 
 

158 
 

• Use of the Class VI Portion of the Old Gilsum Road starting approximately one (1) mile from the 
Gilsum Town line and going north. 
 
Said use shall commence on December 15, 2018 and expire on April 1, 2019, and is subject to the 
following conditions: 
• The signing of a revocable license an indemnification agreement; and 
• The submittal of a certificate of liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000, naming the City 
of Keene as an additional insured. 
 
In addition, the KeeneSnoRiders, Inc. will be responsible (including cost) for the installation and 
maintenance of all signage/marking, which will begin accordance with Snowmobile Trail Standards 
published by the NH Department of Resources and Economic Division of Parks and Recreation; 
that all signage/markings installed shall be removed from the City right-of-way and City property 
when there is no longer any snow cover, no structures, including buildings, shelters, lights, displays, 
walls, etc. shall be permitted with the City right-of-way or on the City property; no parking of motor 
vehicles or trailers and no catering servicing activities of any kind 
shall be permitted within the City right-of-way or on City property; grooming shall not extend 
outside the right-of-way of Krif Road, snow windows shall be groomed to provide adequate sight 
distances and a gentle sloping approach at all road and driveway intersections; no part of the City 
Street (paved surfaces) may be uses by off highway recreational vehicles (OHRV) or their operators 
for any purpose, other than direct crossing; and that KeeneSnoRiders, Inc. shall be responsible for 
the repair of any damage (including costs) and the City right-of-way property shall only be used 
when there is snow cover. A motion by Councilor Jones to carry out the intent of the report was 
duly seconded. The motion passed with a unanimous vote in favor. 
 
PLD REPORT – COUNCILOR FILIAULT – SUPPORTING STATE LEGISLATION THAT 
WOULD STANDARDIZE THE AGE REQUIREMENT FOR TOBACCO AND VAPING 
PRODUCTS  
 
The Chair tabled the Planning, Licenses and Development Committee report until after the vote on 
Ordinance O-2018-20. 
 
FOP REPORT – USE OF UNSPENT PROJECT BALANCE TO IMPROVE PARK AVENUE – 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 
Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee report read recommending the City Manager be 
authorized to use $438,000 in unspent balances from the completed FY18 Road Rehabilitation 
Projects (90018, 90237, and 90249) for the rehabilitation of Park Avenue and to move Park Avenue 
from Fiscal Year 2021 to Fiscal Year 2019.  A motion by Councilor Jacobs to carry out the intent of 
the report was duly seconded. The motion passed with 12 votes in favor and two opposed.   
Councilor Filiault and Councilor Sutherland were opposed. 
 
FOP REPORT – DESIGN CHANGE ORDER – CHESHIRE RAIL TRAIL – PHASE III PROJECT 
– PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 
Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee report read recommending the City Manager be 



 12/06/2018 
 

159 
 

authorized to do all things necessary to negotiate and execute a design change order with CHA 
Consulting, Inc. for the Cheshire Rail Trail Phase III project in an amount not to exceed $11,264.00, 
with funding for the participating and non-participating cost to come from the unspent project 
balance of the FY18 Road Rehabilitation projects.  A motion by Councilor Jacobs to carry out the 
intent of the report was duly seconded. The motion passed with 12 votes in favor and two opposed.   
Councilor Filiault and Councilor Sutherland were opposed. 
 
FOP REPORT – PROJECT EVALUATOR FOR IMLS GRANT – LITTLE MAKERS: LIBRARY 
STEM AND MAKER ACTIVITIES FOR VERY YOUNG LEARNERS CONTRACT – KEENE 
PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee report read recommending the City Council that 
contract RFP 02-19-02 Project Evaluator for IMLS Grant be awarded to Peer Associates.  A motion 
by Councilor Jacobs to carry out the intent of the report was duly seconded. The motion passed with 
a unanimous vote in favor. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 
 
The City Manager announced on Monday, November 26th, Commissioner Caswell was visiting with 
Keene State College to discuss workforce initiatives.  She took advantage of this opportunity to 
support the workforce initiatives at the college, support a future application for funding from the 
Chamber for regional branding, and noted the importance of finding ways to incorporate the state’s 
economic development plan into Keene’s and the region. 
 
The City Manager advised the Council that the 2017 Council adopted the Economic Development 
Action Plan which recommended the creation of a development package. There were printed 
marketing materials given to the Council. 
 
The City Manager reminded the Council that she is in her second year as the City Manager and that 
she had in her first year made her rounds to each of the departments and attended staff meetings.  
She believes this is a great opportunity to speak with employees she might not otherwise see, 
answer questions, provide information and take feedback. 
 
The City Manager noted on December 12, 2018, she will be speaking in front of the Leadership 
Monadnock class to explain what her role is in the City and how the Council form of government 
works.   
 
The Manager continued that on November 19, 2018, she attended a neighborhood meeting with 
President Treadwell from Keene State College.  Representatives from the neighborhood shared their 
concerns and suggestions for improving quality of life for all residents.  Several of their suggestions 
are being brought forward for more discussion at the City College Commission. 
 
The City Manager announced the Gilbo Parking Lot is complete and starting December 7, 2018 the 
kiosks will be active.  
 



 12/06/2018 
 

160 
 

The City Manager reminded the Council they are invited to the Annual City Employee Holiday 
Luncheon and Recognition Event, which is next Thursday from 11:30 AM – 1:30 PM in the 
Michael E.J. Blastos Community Room.   The Holiday Luncheon Committee puts on a wonderful 
luncheon each year and all food and event expenses are supported through donations, including 
donations from union groups, employee funds, vendors (Health Trust and Delta Dental) and other 
local businesses. 
 
MORE TIME 
 
More time was granted by the Chair for the following items in Committee: Vicki Bacon – Body & 
Soul Road Runners’ Club – Request to Use City Property – Red Cap Run; Keene Lions Club – 
Request to Use City Property – Duck Race. 
 
MSFI REPORT AND ORDINANCE O-2018-20: RELATING TO THE PURCHASE, USE AND 
POSSESSION OF TOBACCO PRODUCTS 
 
Municipal Services, Facilities and Infrastructure Committee report read recommending the adoption 
of Ordinance O-2018-20 Relating to the Purchase, Use and Possession of Tobacco Products. The 
report was filed into the record.  Ordinance O-2018-20 was read for the second time. A motion by 
Councilor Manwaring for adoption of the Ordinance was duly seconded.  Lengthy discussion 
followed.  With reference to the motion on the floor, on roll call vote with 14 Councilors present, 10 
voted in favor and Councilors Jacobs, Rice, Sutherland, and Hansel were opposed. Councilor 
Greenwald was absent.  Ordinance O-2018-20 declared adopted. 
 
REMOVED FROM THE TABLE - PLD REPORT – COUNCILOR FILIAULT – SUPPORTING 
STATE LEGISLATION THAT WOULD STANDARDIZE THE AGE REQUIREMENT FOR 
TOBACCO AND VAPING PRODUCTS  
 
Planning, Licenses and Development Committee report read recommending that Staff be instructed 
to work with our Legislative Delegation to amend RSA-126-1C to increase the minimum age from 
18 to 21 to purchase, use or possess tobacco products.  A motion by Councilor Jones to carry out the 
intent of the report was duly seconded. The motion passed with 13 in favor and Councilor 
Sutherland opposed. 
 
ADJOURNMENT FOR COLLECTIVE BARGAINING  
 
At 8:35 PM the Mayor adjourned the meeting for the purposes of collective bargaining strategy. At 
8:47 PM the meeting reconvened.  On motion by Councilor Richards, voted unanimously to 
authorize the City Manager to do all things necessary to execute negotiated contacts with the 
Professional Firefighters of Keene and the Keene Fire Supervisors to be effective July 1, 2018 
through June 30, 2022. 
 

   A true record, attest:        
                                City Clerk 



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

December 18, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Mayor Kendall W. Lane

ITEM: B.1.

SUBJECT:Nominations

RECOMMENDATION:
                                                                                                                                                                     
                                                                               
I hereby nominate the following individuals to serve on the designated board or commission:
 
             
Bicycle Pedestrian Path Advisory Committee
Brad Dufresne, slot 2 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
51 Russell Street

Thom Little, alternate slot 8 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2019

Conservation Commission
Kenneth Bergman, slot 6 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination

Thomas O. Haynes, alternate, slot 9 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination

Juvenile Conference Committee
Joseph Langione, slot 3 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
renomination

Martin Luther King, Jr./Jonathan Daniels Committee
Mohammad Saleh, slot 8 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
240 Darling Road

Partner City Committee
George S. Hansel, slot 6 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021

Planning Board
Andrew Weglinski, slot 2 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021



17 Elm Street, Keene
 
Zoning Board of Adjustment
Joseph Hoppock, slot 1  Term to expire - Dec. 31, 2021
16 Church St.   
 
            

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Background_Hoppock

Background_Saleh

Background_Dufresne

Background_Weglinski





 

Mohammad A. Saleh Ph.D.  
 

Mohammad A. Saleh, Ph.D. 
Physicist, Engineer, Activist  
240 Darling Rd, Keene, NH 03431 
Email: , Phone: 937-308-1568 (C) / 603-3542595(H) 
 
Education: 
-------------- 

• Ph.D. in Electro-Optical Engineering.  University of Dayton, OH, Aug. 2007.  
• M.S. in Electro-Optical Engineering.  University of Dayton, OH, August 1999.  
• B.Sc. in Physics.  CUNY, New York, NY, 1996. 

 
Activism: 
------------- 
 A rational humanist, community leader, dedicated to social progress and justice 
 Member of Keene Immigration and Refugee Partnership 
 Big-Brother in the Big Brother Big Sister organization 
 Community Kitchen volunteer 
 Lead the effort to free father of four minor from ICE custody and deportation fear 

(who lives in Manchester NH)  
 
Professional Career Profile: 
------------------------------------ 
Project leader with 15 years’ experience in a broad range of development work. Extensive 
knowledge in imaging system development, optical testing and metrology, remote sensing, 
photodiode engineering, and diffraction optics design, among a larger list of technical areas. 
Independent, detail driven, with excellent leadership, management and interpersonal skills; 
complemented with written and verbal proficiency. 
 
Professional Experience Details: 
------------------------------------------- 
 Nov. 2012 – Present 
Corning Incorporated 
Title: System Engineer and Project Leader 
 
 Jan. 2008 – Aug 2012 
Science Application International Corporation (SAIC), Beavercreek, OH. 
Title: Senior Electro-Optical Engineer  
 
 Jan. 2003 - Dec. 2007, UES Inc. OH, 
June 2000 - Dec. 2002, TMCI Inc. OH. (TMCI was acquired by UES Inc.) 
Title:  Electro-Optical engineer 
 
 Sep. 1997 - May 2000. 
Title: Graduate Research Assistant, University of Dayton, Dayton, OH. 
 







 

 

 

ANDREW M ICHAEL WEGLINSKI  L E E D  A P  /  B P I  C e r t i f i e d  B u i l d i n g  A n a l y s t  

2 8  V A L L E Y  S T . ,  K E E N E ,  N H  0 3 4 3 1           2 0 1 . 6 6 9 . 2 7 5 2            

 
 
 
 
 

 

EDUCATION 

 

2003 Master of Architecture, Norwich University 

2002  Bachelor of Science in Architectural Studies with Honors 

Minor in Fine Arts, Norwich University 

 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

 

 2017 - Present MacMillin Company / DEW Affiliate Keene, New Hampshire 

   Project Engineer for Hillside Village 

  

 2012 - Present AW Energy Audits – Owner / Operator 

  Blower Door Testing, Thermal Imaging, Energy Consulting 

 

 2006 - 2017 Daniel V. Scully Architects Keene, New Hampshire 

   Project Manager for Edgewater II Lakeside Retreat 

   Project Team for the new Keene ICE rink 

   Project Manager for C&S Fed-Ex Building Retrofit 

   Project Manager for PJ Noyes Assessment & Envelope Retrofit   

   Project Team/CHPS Documentation for Mason Elementary School 

Project Manager for Bigelow Summer Camp 

Project Team & Energy Modeling for Monadnock Food Co-op  

Project Team for Building A – Railroad Development 

Project Manager for numerous Residential & Commercial Projects 

 

 2004 - 2006 M.J. Macaluso & Associates Architects, New York, New York 

Project Manager for Exterior Restoration Projects 

Designer/Project Manager for Private Art Deco Lobby, Midtown Manhattan 

Qualified NYC Exterior Rehabilitation Inspector and Licensed Suspended 
Scaffold Operator  

Project Team for Numerous Design/Planning Projects 

 

2003 – 2004  DeDeJ Inc., Beijing, China   

 Design Team Leader for Greater Suifenhe Concept Pogranichny, China\Russia 
Border Crossing and Trade Zone 

 Designer/Project Manager for Beijing Space Program Headquarters, China 

 Design Team/Planning Board for 2008 Beijing Olympic Park and Venue 

 Design/Planning Team for the New Beijing International Airport, China 

 Design Team for Taihu Lake Resort & Manmade Island, China 

  



 

 

 

 

2002 - 2004 V. Paulius & Associates, Allendale, New Jersey 

Project Team for Coastal Apartment project & Master Plan, Lithuania 

Design Build Team for White Rose and C&S Cold Storage Facilities, Carteret, 
New Jersey 

Intern Architect and Graphic Designer  

 

2000 – 2002 Gary Shank Construction, Ramapo, New Jersey 

   Residential/Commercial Carpentry, Roofing, Painting, & Demolition 

 

VOLUNTEERISM / MILITARY 

 

The Keene Historic District Commission- Vice Chair 

Monadnock Family Services (MFS) - Board of Directors, Operations 
Committee, Facilities Committee 

The Monadnock United Way - Asset Allocations Committee 

Keene Church of the Nazarene - Board of Directors 

The Community Kitchen (TCK) - Board Chair, Building Committee 

United States Marine Corps – Infantry 0311 

 

CERTIFICATIONS, HONORS, AND AWARDS 

 

2018 Keene Young Professional Network,  
2018 Trendsetter Award Recipient 

 
2016 Daniel V. Scully / Architects (Project Manager), Keene, New Hampshire 

Marvin Window & Doors 2016 National Architect Challenge winner, 
Best Transitional/Eclectic Project for Edgewater II, Harrisville, NH. 

 

2015 OSHA (Occupational Safety & Health Administration) 

OSHA 30 Construction Certification 

 

2012 Building Performance Institute (BPI)  

BPI Building Analyst Certification 

 

2009 United States Green Building Council  

LEED Accredited Professional with BD+C specialty Certification 

 

2008 Daniel V. Scully / Architects (Project Manager), Keene, New Hampshire 
AIA/New Hampshire, Excellence in Residential Architecture: 
The People’s Choice Award Bigelow Camphouse, Temple, NH  

   

2006 MJ Macaluso & Associates Architects (Project Team), New York, New York 

SARA Design Award for Tre-Dici Restaurant 

 

2004 DeDeJ Inc. (Designer / Design Team), Beijing, China 

o Design Competition Winner Suifenhe / Pogranichny Border Trade Zone 
Master Plan. 



 

 

 

 

o Design Competition Winner for AP-MCSTA Building (China Space 
Headquarters) 

o Design Competition Winner for Tsinghua University Building & Landscape 
Design 

o Design Competition Winner for Beijing International Airport Design 



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

December 5, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Kendall W. Lane, Mayor

ITEM: B.2.

SUBJECT: Confirmations

COUNCIL ACTION:
In City Council December 6, 2018.
Tabled until the next regular meeting.

RECOMMENDATION:
I hereby nominate the following individuals to serve on the designated Board or Commission:
Airport Development and Marketing Committee

Elizabeth Bendel, slot 9 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 
Assessors Board

Rita Johnson, slot 2 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 
Bicycle/Pedestrian Path Advisory Committee

Dillon Benik, slot 7 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination
 

 

 
Energy and Climate Committee

Kenneth Dooley, slot 1 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 
Jessica Baum, slot 7 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 
Larry Dachowski, alternate, slot 10 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 
 
College City Commission
 

Bettina Chadbourne, slot 4 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  



 
Dick Berry, slot 5 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 
Conservation Commission
 

Alexander VonPlinsky, slot 1 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 
Heritage Commission
 

Charlotte Schuerman, slot 6 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 
Erin Benik, slot 7 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 
Historic District Commission
 

Hans Porschitz, slot 3 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 
David Bergeron, alternate, slot 9 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 
Paul Cooper, alternate, slot 10 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

                               
Keene Housing Authority
 

Pamela Russell Slack, slot 5 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2023
Re-nomination  

 
Martin Luther King, Jr./Jonathan Daniels Committee
 

William Hay, slot 2 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 
Jan Manwaring, slot 3 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

                                                               
Partner City Committee
 

Dawn Thomas Smith, slot 4 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 
Kathy Frink, slot 7 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 
Trustees of Trust Funds



 
Kathy Snow, slot 2 Term to expire Dec. 31, 2021
Re-nomination  

 



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

December 6, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Karen Parsells

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.1.

SUBJECT:Karen Parsells - Resignation - Partner City Committee

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Communication_Parsells

BACKGROUND:
Karen Parsells is resigning from the Partner City Committee, effective December 31, 2018.  Karen has been a
member of the Committee since its inception on July 17, 2008.
 





External Communication
Transmittal Form

December 18, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Edward Guyot

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.2.

SUBJECT:Edward Guyot - Resignation - Bicycle Pedestrian Path Advisory Committee

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Communication_Guyot

BACKGROUND:
Edward Guyot is resigning his membership position on the Bicycle Pedestrian Path Advisory Committee.  He
has been a member since February 18, 2016.





City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

December 11, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Pamela Russell Slack

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.3.

SUBJECT:Pamela Russell Slack - Public Restrooms at Former Transportation Center

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Slack Communication

BACKGROUND:
Ms. Slack is requesting the City do a cost comparison for installation of public restrooms at the former
Transportation Center versus the installation of a Portland Loo.











City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

December 11, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Pamela Russell Slack

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.4.

SUBJECT:Pamela Russell Slack - Installation of a Payment Dropbox Outside City Hall

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Slack Communication

BACKGROUND:
Ms. Slack is suggesting that a payment drop box be installed outside City Hall for the convenience of the
public.





City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

December 13, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Mindy Cambiar, Executive Director

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.5.

SUBJECT:Hundred Nights Shelter - Request for Renewal of Lodging House License

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Cambiar Communication

BACKGROUND:
Ms. Cambiar has submitted the annual request for a Lodging House License for Hundred Nights Shelter.







City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

December 13, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Jim Narkiewicz, Festival Committee Chair

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.6.

SUBJECT:Monadnock Travel Council - Use of City Property - 2019 Ice and Snow Festival

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Narkiewicz Communication

BACKGROUND:
Mr. Narkiewicz is making the annual request for the 2019 Ice and Snow Festival to be held on February 2,
2019.





City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

December 18, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Phoebe Bray, Executive Director

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.7.

SUBJECT:Keene Community Kitchen - In Support of Resolution R-2018-36

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Community Kitchen Communication

BACKGROUND:
Ms. Bray has submitted a letter on behalf of the Keene Community Kitchen in support of the adoption of
Resolution R-2018-36 relating to Sustainable Energy Goals.





City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

December 18, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Cary H. Gaunt, Ph.D., Director of Campus Sustainability

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.8.

SUBJECT:Keene State College - In Support of Resolution R-2018-36

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Keene State College Communication

BACKGROUND:
Dr. Gaunt has submitted a letter on behalf of Keene State College in support of the adoption of Resolution R-
2018-36 relating to Sustainable Energy Goals.







City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

December 18, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Shawn M. Fitzgerald, Ph.D., Provost and CEO

THROUGH:Patricia A. Little, City Clerk

ITEM: C.9.

SUBJECT:Antioch University New England - In Support of Resolution R-2018-36

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Antioch University New England Communication

BACKGROUND:
Dr. Fitzgerald has submitted a letter on behalf of Antioch University New England in support of the adoption of
Resolution R-2018-36 relating to Sustainable Energy Goals.





City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

December 12, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Municipal Services, Facilities & Infrastructure Committee

ITEM: D.1.

SUBJECT:Request for Easement Encroachment – Monadnock Food Co-op

RECOMMENDATION:
On a vote of 4-0, the Municipal Services, Facilities & Infrastructure Committee recommends that the City
Manager and City staff be authorized to do all things necessary to negotiate and execute the necessary
documentation with the Monadnock Food Co-op and Railroad Street Condominium Unit Owners Association
for encroachments in the City’s Drainage Easement located on the former Railroad Property subject to
conditions identified by staff.

BACKGROUND:
Public Works Director Kürt Blomquist explained this request is time sensitive. He stated that there are two
representatives from the Monadnock Food Co-op approached the City to discuss encroaching on a City
easement; he used a map to demonstrate the location. There are two easements near the Co-op on Railroad
Street Condominium Unit Owners Association property. The drainage easement in question in this request is
for a large storm drain that moves water north from Main Street. As the Co-op moved forward designing their
new addition and submitted a permit application for third party review, they found they were encroaching on the
City’s drainage easement. The encroachment is a fairly small 12’ area. Still, the Public Works Director tries
typically to discourage building permanent structures where the City has infrastructure. Depending on how this
Committee and Council vote, the Co-op will redesign to move outside that area if necessary. If Council grants
the encroachment, staff will work with the Co-op designers to ensure the foundation is protected for the future
when there is a need to upgrade or replace the drainage system; the City does not want to be responsible for
extra costs to protect the Co-op building. This project is unique because the land is owned cooperatively under
the title Railroad Land Development, LLC, which is why both the Co-op and condominium association are
included in the recommended motion; per the City Attorney, it is necessary to work with both entities. He and
the City Attorney anticipate release of the easement area but nothing is finalized because of the short notice. He
said the recommended motion is broad so that staff has broad authority to allow the City Manager to finalize
documents. Staff needs Council’s concurrence for the Co-op to be able to encroach on the easement. 

The Public Works Director introduced the two representatives present for this request: Rob Hitchcock,
engineer from SVE Associates, and Michael Faber, General Manager of Monadnock Food Co-op. Mr.
Hitchcock began explaining that he made a mistake in using an outside surveyor initially because his was
unavailable; the outside contractor was less familiar with the project area and the City, and thus was unaware of
the easement. Mr. Hitchcock said he was at fault because he did not follow-up to confirm the easements were
unaffected in the design. He used a map to describe the addition and the encroachment. He said he knows it
was his mistake, but redesigning will cause them to lose additional community space, and will add a minimum
six weeks to the project schedule. They are asking for help to resolve this as easily as possible for everyone. 



Mr. Faber echoed Mr. Hitchcock and said he appreciates Council’s willingness to consider this request. He
knows it was a mistake and might seem like a small area, but redesigning the addition is more complex than it
might appear on the map; the interior layout would be impacted and all of the steel would have to be redesigned.
Per Chair Manwaring’s request, Mr. Faber demonstrated the 6,700sf addition on the design plans. 

The Public Works Director summarized the request and said the recommended motion is positive so the City
can work with the Co-op and Railroad Land Development, LLC to develop a solution. Per Councilor
Hooper’s request, the Public Works Director explained developing this solution will require staff time, which is
a minor expense to the City. 

Councilor Filiault made the following motion, which Councilor Lamoureux seconded. 

On a vote of 4-0, the Municipal Services, Facilities & Infrastructure Committee recommends that the City
Manager and City staff be authorized to do all things necessary to negotiate and execute the necessary
documentation with the Monadnock Food Co-op and Railroad Street Condominium Unit Owners Association
for encroachments in the City’s Drainage Easement located on the former Railroad Property subject to
conditions identified by staff. 



City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

November 30, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Mark F. Howard, Fire Chief

THROUGH:Elizabeth A. Dragon, City Manager

ITEM: 2.

SUBJECT:2018 Homeland Security Grant Program Award- HazMat Allocation - Fire Department

RECOMMENDATION:
Move that the Finance, Organization and Personnel Committee recommend that the City Manager be
authorized to do all things necessary to accept a grant in the amount of $25,303.94 from the 2018 State of
New Hampshire Homeland Security Grant Program.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Grant

BACKGROUND:
 
On October 14, 2018, the Fire Department was approved by the City Manager to apply for the 2018 State
of New Hampshire Homeland Security Program Hazardous Materials Grant. All of the funds awarded for
the listed equipment to be purchased are 100% grant funded with no local contribution.
See attached award letter and approved equipment list of the equipment awarded.

 







City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

November 29, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Donald R. Lussier, P.E., City Engineer

THROUGH:Elizabeth A. Dragon, City Manager

ITEM: H.1.

SUBJECT:Relating to Loading Zones and Parking

RECOMMENDATION:
That Ordinance O-2018-22, Relating to Loading Zones and Parking, be referred to the Municipal Services,
Facilities and Infrastructure Committee for review and recommendation to the City Council.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Ordinance O-2018-22

BACKGROUND:
The City's recent reconstruction of the Gilbo East parking lot shifted the travel lane along the southern portion
of St. James Street toward the west in order to accommodate angled parking on the eastern side.  This
necessitated the elimination of five metered parallel spaces on the west side.
 
The attached Ordinance O-2018-22 will expand an existing 15-minute loading zone and designate the remainder
of this area a "No Parking" zone.





City of Keene, N.H.
Transmittal Form

December 14, 2018

TO: Mayor and Keene City Council

FROM: Mari Brunner, Planning Technician

THROUGH:Elizabeth A. Dragon, City Manager

ITEM: J.1.

SUBJECT:Relating to Sustainable Energy Goals

RECOMMENDATION:
That Resolution R-2018-36 relative to Sustainable Energy Goals be referred to the Municipal Services,
Facilities and Infrastructure Committee for consideration and a recommendation back to City Council.

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Resolution R-2018-36

BACKGROUND:
This item was originally submitted to City Council as a communication from Nancy Gillard and Carolyn Jones
on November 1, 2018.  The communication was referred by Mayor Lane to the Energy and Climate Committee
(ECC) and the Municipal Services, Facilities, and Infrastructure (MSFI) Committee.  The ECC discussed the
proposed resolution at their meeting on November 7, 2018 and voted unanimously to recommend that the
Keene City Council adopt the proposed Sustainable Energy Resolution. 
 
The MSFI committee reviewed this item at their meeting on November 28, 2018 and heard from approximately
28 individuals during the public comments portion of the meeting, all of whom were in favor of adopting the
proposed sustainable energy goals.  Several individuals read statements on behalf of area businesses and
organizations in support of the proposed goals, including Bensonwood, Filtrine Manufacturing, Green Energy
Options, Monadnock Food Co-op, Tree Free Greeting, The Greater Keene Chamber of Commerce, and
Keene State College Sustainability Office.  The committee voted to recommend that City Council direct staff to
introduce a resolution regarding sustainable energy, which passed on a vote of 4-1 with Councilor Sutherland
opposing.
 
At the December 6, 2018 City Council meeting, the Council voted to direct staff to introduce a resolution
regarding sustainable energy, as recommended by the MSFI committee. The motion passed with 13 in favor
and Councilor Sutherland opposed.






	Meeting Agenda
	12-06-2018 - Minutes
	Nominations
	Confirmations
	Karen Parsells - Resignation - Partner City Committee
	Edward Guyot - Resignation - Bicycle Pedestrian Path Advisory Committee
	Pamela Russell Slack - Public Restrooms at Former Transportation Center
	Pamela Russell Slack - Installation of a Payment Dropbox Outside City Hall
	Hundred Nights Shelter - Request for Renewal of Lodging House License
	Monadnock Travel Council - Use of City Property - 2019 Ice and Snow Festival
	Keene Community Kitchen - In Support of Resolution R-2018-36
	Keene State College - In Support of Resolution R-2018-36
	Antioch University New England - In Support of Resolution R-2018-36
	Request for Easement Encroachment – Monadnock Food Co-op
	2018 Homeland Security Grant Program Award- HazMat Allocation - Fire Department
	Relating to Loading Zones and Parking
	Relating to Sustainable Energy Goals

